
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MACON COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH 
MINUTES 
11/14/2023 

 
Members: Garrett Higdon, Engineer; Paul Higdon, County Commissioner; Vacant, Optometrist; Dr. Roy 

Lenzo, Veterinarian; Vacant, Pharmacist; Dr Matt Corbin, Dentist; Ellen Shope, Nurse 
Representative and Vice Chair; Dr. Michael Dupuis, Physician; Members of General Public, Jerry 
Hermanson Chair, Dr. Charlie Vargas; Vacant, General Member 

  
Members Absent: Paul Higdon 

  
Staff Present: Kathy McGaha, Amanda Cowart, Melissa Setzer, Julie Rogers, Jimmy Villiard 

  
Guests: None 

  
Media: 

 
Call to Order: 

 
 

Welcome/Intro/ 
Departures/ 
Recognition/ 

Announcements: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Comment: 
 

 
Agenda Approval: 
 

          
 
 

Presentation: 
 

School Based 
Health Center 

Demo 

Mia Overton, Franklin Press 
 
Jerry Hermanson called the meeting to order at 6:18 p.m.   
 
 
Mr. Hermanson began by welcoming everyone including Mia Overton with the Franklin Press 
and new board members, Garrett Higdon and Dr. Matt Corbin.  
 
Kathy McGaha announced departures of employees: Josh Wilson, REHS in Environmental 
Health and Charles Womack, Environmental Health Supervisor who is retiring at the end of 
December. She introduced new employees:  Dawn Roberts, Finance Assistant, Nancy Roman, 
WIC Processing Assistant. Ms. McGaha also introduced current board members to Mr. Garrett 
Higdon and Dr. Matt Corbin.  
 
Jerry Hermanson asked if there was Public Comment, to which there were none. 
 
 
Dr. Michael Dupuis made a motion to approve the agenda with the following changes: Remove 
Items number 5 and 6, remove Closed Session and add Environmental Health Fees as Item D 
under New Business. Dr. Charles Vargas seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
Julie Rogers Physician Assistant II with Kayla Waters Medical Office Assistant presented the 
School Based Health Center. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Rogers began by sharing a graph of MCPH Telehealth Visits. School Based Health Center 
is a Telehealth model. Equipment is in all 11 Macon County Schools. All students and staff can 
enroll in School Base Health Center. Students and/or staff may be seen for any acute same day 
illness. Parents will not have to be present, but can attend the visit remotely. The goal is to 
increase access to care, which is number one on the list of our community health care goals.  
The program quietly rolled out last March in an effort to work out the details before it was 
widely advertised. This year, it was implemented while letting the public know it was available. 
A link is on the schools website for a one-time enrollment. Ms. Rogers spoke on advertising 
efforts and passed out mugs that have QR codes for enrollment. She provided information 
regarding school nurses and trained staff that assist in School Based Health Center visits. On-site 
testing can be done for Strep, Flu/Covid and urine analysis.        
  
Jerry Hermanson asked about obtaining consent. Ms. Rogers replied consent is built into the 
enrollment process. 
Mr. Hermanson also asked the percentage of students on Medicaid. Ms. Rogers said she 
believes, of the students enrolled, that number is approximately 50%.    
 
Ms. Rogers, with the assistance of Kayla Waters, gave a live demonstration of a School Based 
Health visit. Ms. Waters was setup remotely at a local school with a student volunteer. Board 
members were able to observe the examination of ears, lungs and heart. 
 
Ellen Shope inquired regarding cases of head lice and injuries. Ms. Rogers said she has treated 
one case of head lice. However, she does not see cases of injury, which requires her to 
physically touch the patient.  
Ms. Shope also asked about students who are not on Medicaid or uninsured. Ms. Rogers said 
they have fees based on a sliding fee schedule.   
 
Mr. Hermanson asked how prescriptions are handled. Ms. Rogers said she could write a script 
and follow up with the parent to verify health history and parameters.   
 
Surveys were sent last year to obtain feedback on enrollment. 
 
All children enrolled in Macon County Schools or employed by Macon County Schools are 
eligible for this program. If employees do not have county insurance, there is a set fee of $30 per 
visit. 
 
Dr. Matt Corbin asked if a child could be seen that has not yet enrolled. Ms, Rogers responded, 
they can do the enrollment “day of”, but it will need to be completed before they are seen.  
 
Mr. Hermanson thanked Ms. Rogers and requested updates on the progress of this program in 
the future.  
 
Please see graph on next page.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approval of 
Previous Meeting 

Minutes: 
 
 

Old Business: 
 

Changes to 
Environmental 
Health Policies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Dr. Michael Dupuis made a motion to accept the previous minutes. Ellen Shope seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
Kathy McGaha referred to and followed up on the presentation Jon Fouts gave at a previous 
Board of Health meeting. Mr. Fouts’ presentation was on the changes coming for Environmental 
Health Departments across the state for wastewater systems. She spoke on the more 
complicated, larger (possibly engineered) system applications and the time and labor those 
require. At the time of Mr. Fouts’ presentation, there were concerns of how to outsource or limit 
the impact on other applicants, in the event these types of applications are received. Ms. 
McGaha has since researched these concerns. After speaking with the county attorney, our 
Environmental Health consultants, and other counties: there would need to be an internal policy 
written. The policy would be written into the rules as to which systems may be outsourced to an 
engineer. It can specify that nothing in addition to the list may be outsourced. She also 
discovered no other county is limiting the number of these types of applications. Ms. McGaha 
will continue to research questions regarding this issue before implementation of a policy 
change. She would also like to include the new Environmental Health Supervisor in any decision 
making, as Charles Womack is retiring at the end of December 2023. She will continue to keep 
the board informed regarding this matter.  
 



 
 
 

New Business: 
 

Review and Make 
changes to Board 
of Health Policies 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Animal Control 
Staffing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Hermanson asked for an estimated time frame when the board would hear more about this. 
Ms. McGaha answered she could come back to the board within the next few meetings.  
 
 
 
 
Kathy McGaha reminded the group of Board of Health Policies emailed to them prior to the 
meeting and of the copies provided in their individual binders. She did not recommend any 
changes. She presented the board with the option to approve during the meeting or to take the 
policies home for review and approve at the next meeting in January.    
 
Ellen Shope made a motion to approve the Board of Health Policies. Dr. Michael Dupuis 
seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
Jimmy Villiard directed the group to a graph showing monthly intake comparisons for Macon 
County Animal Services.  

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Nominations of 
Chair/Vice Chair 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Environment 
Health Proposed 

Fees 

Mr. Villiard highlighted the intakes of 625 in 2020 versus 1139 in 2022, noting an 82% increase. 
He added total intakes this October were nearly the same as total intakes for the entire year of 
2022. These numbers put a tremendous strain on staff and he would like to ease their burden. 
Current staff consists of 3 full time Animal Control Officers, one full time shelter attendant and 
one part time shelter attendant. He congratulated his staff for the euthanasia rate of below 10%, 
which is way below the national average. He noted, this a real testament to their work and being 
an open shelter. Mr. Villiard acknowledged having this many animals contributes to more time 
spent cleaning and less time on the roads for Animal Control Officers.  
 
Ellen Shope asked how many animals are housed at the shelter at any given time. Mr. Villiard 
answered, around capacity at 70-75 (dogs and cats). He added, usually they see seasonal 
variance; however those numbers stay consistent year round now. Ms. Shope asked if someone 
is at the shelter during daytime hours only. Mr. Villiard answered, yes and added one Animal 
Control Officer is on call for emergencies. Between the current ACO’s they working 12 days in 
a row. They have recently adjusted a few things so they may have a break.  
 
Dr. Roy Lenzo asked if they were seeing twice the amount of animals on the same amount of 
money. Ms. McGaha answered, stating that during budget it was requested to change an 
administrative position to an additional control officer position. Not only was the request denied, 
but also the money budgeted for the administrative position was taken away. She emphasized 
that burnout has resulted from dealing with the increase in numbers versus the number of staff. 
Adding, that the number of complaints from the community are a direct result of a staffing 
shortage. However, she has received some of the strongest letters of support from the 
community for this staff.  She acknowledged the low euthanasia rate is because this staff works 
exceptionally hard using every trick in the book, getting these animals adopted or transported to 
no kill shelters. Ms. McGaha added that there is a need for additional staff, from a part-time 
attendant to another control officer. She asked if the board would help inform our county 
commissioners of the need. 
 
Mr. Villiard added, on Tuesday’s, Thursday’s and Saturday’s there are between 25-30 
volunteers. He stated the shelter could not survive without those volunteers. He also clarified 
Macon County Animal Shelter is an open shelter, while others are a closed shelter; example the 
Macon County Humane Society. Closed shelters have the option to refuse animals. Open shelter 
means we have to accept any animal. He also noted, due to the economy they see not only strays, 
but many surrenders.  
 
Jerry Hermanson petitioned the other board members to get involved and advocate on behalf of 
the shelter. He requested Ms. McGaha keep the board abreast of the budget process and how the 
board can help with this issue.  
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
 
Kathy McGaha informed the group that Jerry Hermanson has agreed to continue as Chair and 
Ellen Shope has agreed to continue to be Vice Chair. Mr. Hermanson asked the group if anyone 
was so inclined to make a nomination.  
 
Dr. Michael Dupuis made a motion to accept Jerry Hermanson as Chair and Ellen Shope as Vice 
Chair. Dr. Charles Vargas seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Kathy McGaha asked the board to refer to the list of proposed Environmental Health fees for 
2024. If the board approves of the fees, they would be added to the agenda for approval at the 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Health 
Training Item: 

 
Next Meeting 

Date: 
 

Announcements: 
 
 
 

next commissioners meeting. The fees in light blue are proposed fee changes. The darker blue is 
a fee change the state put in place September 2023. All other fees remain the same for now.  
 
Garrett Higdon asked for clarification on the Session Law Permit that states “see IP/CA fees” in 
the fee column. Ms. McGaha answered; those are not set fees and calculated on a percentage.  
 
Dr. Charles Vargas made a motion to approve the fees. Dr. Michael Dupuis seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
N/A 
 
 
The next meeting will be September 26, 2023 
 
 
Ms. McGaha explained Ruth Stilwell had withdrawn her board membership application, citing 
other obligations. Ms. McGaha will continue to pursue other leads for potential board members.  
 
 



Adjournment: 
 

 
 

Minutes Recorded 
by: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. Matt Corbin made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Dr. Michael Dupuis seconded the 
motion. Motion to adjourn passed unanimously at 7:26 p.m.  
 
 
 
Amanda Cowart 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 


